BELLEVUE PLANNING COMMISSION
Thursday, November 19, 2020 7:00 PM
Bellevue City Hall

1500 Wall Street

Bellevue, NE 68005

1. CALL TO ORDER:
a. Pledge of Allegiance
b. Roll Call
c. The Open Meetings Act location
d. Approve Minutes of October 22, 2020 Regular Meeting
e. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each
application.

2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:
a. Request to final plat Lots 122 through 124, Belle Lago South, being a platting of a tract of
land located in part of the Southwest V4 of the Northwest %4 of Section 8, T13N, R13E of the
6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska; and approval of the First Amendment to the Belle Lago
South Subdivision Agreement. Applicant: HRC Belle Lago, LLC. General location: 45th
Street and Lookingglass Drive. Case #: S-2010-23.

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
a. Request for a conditional use permit for Lot 1, Biben Subdivision, for the purpose of auto
sales. Applicant: Edward A Gilbert Jr. Location: 2620 Greenfield Street, #100. Case #:
CUP-2009-03.
b. Request to rezone Lot 1, Walbeck Addition, from RG-20 to BN for the purpose of
commercial development. Applicant: Amigo’s Market LLC. General location: West Chandler
Road and South 28th Street. Case #: Z-2009-14.
c. Request to rezone Lot 2, Wolf Creek Replat 4, from BGH to RG-8-PS for the purpose of
multi-family development. Applicant: Wolf Creek Apartments Il, LLC. General location:
10904 South 15th Street. Case#: Z-2010-15.

4. CURRENT BUSINESS
a. Approve the 2021 Uniform Review Schedule

5. ADJOURNMENT



EXHIBIT

1d

MINUTE RIECORID

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, October 22, 2020, Page 1

The Bellevue Planning Commission held a regular meeting on Thursday, October 22, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Bellevue City Council Chambers. Upon roll call, present were Commissioners Casey, Perrin,
Aerni, Ritz, Ackley, Hankins, Cutsforth, and Jacobson. Absent was Cain. Also present were Tammi
Palm, Planning Department Manager, and Angela Curry, Assistant Planning Manager.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Gretna Guide and posting in
two public places, and was also given to the Chairperson and members prior to the meeting. These
minutes were written and available for public inspection within ten days of the meeting.

Ritz announced a copy of the Open Meetings Act was posted in the entry to the City Council Chambers.

Motion was made by Ackley, seconded by Casey, to approve the minutes of the September 24, 2020
reqular meeting as presented. Upon roll call, all present voted yes. Motion carried unanimously.

Ritz asked if there were any updates or additions to staff reports. Palm advised there were no updates
or additions.

Motion was made by Jacobson, seconded by Cutsforth, to accept into the record all staff reports,
attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each application. Upon roll call, all present voted ves.
Motion carried unanimously.

Ritz explained the public hearing procedures

PUBLIC HEARING was held on a request to rezone Tax Lot 14, located in the Southwest ¥ of Section
31, T14N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska, from AG to ML for the purpose of light
industrial development. Applicant: Ryan Steele. General location: 11715 S 60" Street. Case#: Z-

2009-13.

Pat Sullivan, 1246 Golden Gate Drive, Papillion, NE, was present to speak on behalf of the applicant.
Sullivan stated the property is a twenty-acre parcel approximately three eighths of a mile south of
Highway 370 and 60" Street. He stated the applicant’s concept is unique and in a sense pivoting
toward the current economy. Sullivan stated he has the utmost respect for Tammi Palm, Planning

Manager, but their opinions differ regarding spot zoning.

Ryan Steele, 16050 South 120" Street, Springfield, NE, was present to speak. Steele stated he
established his first company at the age of eleven doing yard work. Steele said at the age of sixteen
he rented a facility to store his equipment, which he quickly outgrew. He said he struggled to find a
solution to serve the storage needs of his young company. Steele stated he was not comfortable with
taking on a three to five year lease commitment. He said most small businesses struggle with this
exact problem. Steele stated during the course of the last twenty years he learned what it took to

operate a successful business.

Dale Williams, 9257 Platteview Road, Papillion, NE, was present to speak on behalf of the applicant.
Williams stated in 2004 he joined Entrepreneurship’s Organization (EO), a worldwide organization
comprised of groups of business owners that share business challenges and strategies. Williams said
the proposed facility would provide an environment of community, connection, and culture. He said the
objective was to help small businesses succeed in challenges and provide excellent customer service.

Steele stated the plan for the facility was to help small businesses on the path of success. Steele
stated this facility would provide small businesses infrastructure, learning opportunities, and fill in the
gaps where they lack expertise and knowledge. He said lease agreements would be sixty-days
minimum and a month to month lease after the sixty-days. Steele displayed slides of the proposed

facility's contours, spaces, and floor plans.

Brad Blakeman, Blakeman Engineering, 10423 Hansen Avenue, Omaha, NE, was present to speak on
behalf of the applicant. Blakeman stated grading of the site would have to match the elevation of 60"
Street. He stated the entire property after grading would be somewhat recessed on the south and east

sides.

Steele displayed slides showing various sites in the metro area with similar zoning and topography.

Sullivan stated when a comprehensive plan is formed is it typically already outdated because the world
moves so quickly. He stated this type of facility is in tremendous demand for the up and coming
tradesmen like electricians, plumbers, and others. Sullivan stated municipalities receive constant



MINUTIE RIECORD

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, October 22, 2020, Page 2

complaints on people working out of their homes and for equipment parked on the streets and in
driveways. He said this facility would eliminate these types of complaints. He said there have been
discussions regarding spot zoning and conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, but the
Comprehensive Plan is just that, a plan. Sullivan stated spot zoning is usually one very small lot or lots
that are completely surrounded by other developments. He stated the surrounding areas are being
used as industrial, and changing this zoning would be an advantage to the surrounding properties. He
said it does not make sense to have a residential development on an arterial road such as Highway
370. Sullivan stated the applicant is willing to install a thirty-foot landscape area around the property
as well as dedicate a right-of-way on Schram Road for future use if developed. Sullivan said this
property would not have an increased water or sewer use and would have a well and a septic system.

He stated this facility is an incubator for blue-collar businesses and would bring business into the City
of Bellevue.

There was no one else present to speak in favor of, or in opposition to this request. Subsequently, Ritz
closed the public hearing.

Ackley asked staff to explain the recommendation for denial. Palm stated properties in the area are
zoned Agricultural (AG), and some of the properties are legal non-conforming. She stated the Future
Land Use Map was updated in August 2018 and the Comprehensive Plan would be updated within the
next few months. She said the Comprehensive Plan shows this property as low density residential.
Palm stated the city has annexed Lakewood Villages. The properties moving toward South 60" Street
would eventually mirror the Lakewood Villages development, and consist of commercial, multi-family
residential and single family dwellings. She said she does appreciate Mr. Steele’s business plan but
her concerns are from a land use prospective. Palm stated although Mr. Steele does have a conceptual
site and business plan, with the requested Light Manufacturing (ML) zoning there is nothing that holds
him legally to that plan. She said if the property was rezoned, anything that is a permitted use within
the ML zoning district would be allowed on the property without any city approval. Palm stated the ML
zoning will allow manufacturing of food products, merchandise, light sheet metal products, trucking
terminals, large warehouse facilities and land sea container storage as permitted uses. She said with
this application the city is deciding the course of planning for the entire area. Palm stated if the city
deviates from the Comprehensive Plan it would set a precedent to go from residential uses to the other
end of the spectrum to industrial uses. She said if the property to the east would be developed as

residential, the ML zoning on this property would require a buffer yard and would become a burden to
the neighboring developer.

Sullivan stated the applicant would contractually agree to install the buffer yard, dedicate Schram Road,
and conform to the site and business plans. Palm stated a contractual zoning agreement had been

discussed; however Administration and the Planning Department did not want to enter into that type of
agreement.

Ackley asked how many houses per acre would be in the low-density residential housing. Palm stated
low-density housing would be the RS-120 zoning (Single Family Residential — 12,000 Square foot zone)
which would make it similar to the Cedar Grove Subdivision. Ackley stated from a planning prospective
the city would continue to grow with residential developments from 36" Street to the west and hopefully
some commercial development along the 370 corridor. He said he likes the applicant’s concept but is
not sure this is the right location. Ackley asked if the applicant had looked at property on the Highway
34 and Highway 75 corridor which has areas slated for light industrial development. Ackley asked what
the total development cost and accessed value of the project would be. Steele stated his preliminary
estimate was about fifteen million for phase | and phase II.

Casey asked why this area when there are other areas in Bellevue that are zoned appropriately. Steele
said this site is perfectly situated between Papillion and Bellevue on the Highway 370 corridor. Steele
stated because of the Nebraska Department of Roads site he assumed the property was already zoned
for industrial use. Palm indicated the NDOR no longer owns property along South 60" Street.
Additionally, their prior maintenance yard was zoned AG,; therefore, making it a legal, nonconforming
use. Discussion ensued regarding areas that would be better suited for this project.

Jacobson asked if fire protection for the ML zoning had been resolved. Palm stated she was not aware
of any fire hydrants in the area. Jacobson asked if there were any noise restrictions regarding hours
of operation. Palm said there were no restrictions on hours of operation but they would be required to
meet performance standards in regards to noise, smoke, and things of that nature. Jacobson said the
Comprehensive Plan designates this area as low density residential and since it was last updated in
2018 the housing shortage is still an issue. He said there is a tremendous shortage in affordable
housing in the Bellevue area. Jacobson stated in an area that is clearly meant to be residential he had



MINUTE RECORID

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, October 22, 2020, Page 3

concerns with the project and the absence of a contractual agreement to limit the uses. He said he
applauds the applicant for an excellent business plan. Jacobson asked the applicant how traffic access
would be handled until lights are installed at 60" Street and Highway 370. Sullivan stated 60" and
Highway 370 would be a signaled intersection. He said the State of Nebraska issues warrants to install
traffic signals based on traffic flow however, most times the need for a signal has long passed by the
time a warrant is issued. Discussion ensued regarding traffic on Highway 370.

Ritz asked staff what was the basis of the ML zoning. Palm stated the ML zoning permits the
warehousing and indoor/outdoor storage Mr. Steele is purposing. Ritz asked if there was any other
zoning with a conditional use for this proposal. Palm stated the ML zoning has no limitations on the
size of equipment to be parked on the site and the outdoor storage Mr. Steele would be able to allow
on the property which is what he desires. Discussion ensued regarding the appropriate zoning for this
project and the outdoor parking. Mr. Steele stated they would not allow any inoperable equipment to
be parked on the site. He stated the site would be pristine. Palm explained the difference between the
Heavy General Business District (BGH) zoning and the ML zoning. Palm stated the ML zoning is the
only appropriate zoning for Mr. Steele’s business plan.

Aerni stated every intersection west on Highway 370 has some type of mixed use, light industrial zoning
except for this intersection. He asked why the Comprehensive Plan was designated residential at this
intersection. He said Papillion had designated the area to the west across 60" Street as Neighborhood
mixed use residential limited, and commercial office. Palm stated Papillion’s proposed zonings from
their Comprehensive Plan for this area are very different from the requested ML zoning. She stated
Bellevue's future industrial development had been reserved mostly for the Highway 34 corridor, and
from Highway 75 westward along Highway 370 there is no planned industrial areas. Palm stated
Bellevue’s Highway 370 corridor had been designated for mixed use, activity centers, commercial, and
multi-family zoning. Discussion ensued regarding what changes would be made to the Comprehensive

Plan for this area.
Aerni requested Chad Wehrbein provide public testimony. Ritz re-opened the public hearing.

Chad Wehrbein, Timmerman Farms, 17701 Webster Blvd, Plattsmouth, NE, stated as a neighbor he is
in favor of the project. He stated Mr. Steele and Mr. Williams are successful business people and the
dedication of Schram Road would be an asset. Mr. Wehrbein did indicate Ms. Palm’s explanation of
the possible future uses with the ML zoning was eye opening. Discussion ensued regarding the future

development of the area.

Aerni said the area already had some light industrial use with Timmerman Farms and the former NDOR
lot. Palm stated Timmerman Farms would not be considered light industrial and greenhouses are

allowed in an AG zoning district.

Williams stated he did not want to be penalized for whoever or whatever caused the city to reject
entering into a contractual agreement and he hoped the city would reconsider.

There was no one else present to speak in favor of, or in opposition to this request. Subsequently, Ritz
closed the public hearing.

Ritz stated he did not want to set precedence by deviating from the Comprehensive Plan for this area.
He stated he thought it was an exceptional business plan. Ritz said the Planning Commission does

not have the authority to write or enter into a contractual agreement.

Cutsforth stated the plan was a great concept and it would be very helpful to entrepreneurs but the
Comprehensive Plan, although not set in stone, does not designate this area for the ML zoning.

Ritz asked the applicant if they would like to continue this item to discuss a contractual agreement with
the city. Palm reiterated the Planning Department, Community Development Director, and City
Administrator were not interested in a contractual agreement and she recommended the Planning

Commission vote on the item tonight.
Ackley stated he was in favor of the concept but not the location.

MOTION was made by Ackley, seconded by Jacobson to recommend DENIAL of a request to rezone
Tax Lot 14, located in the Southwest ¥4 of Section 31, T14N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County,
Nebraska. from AG to ML for the purpose of light industrial development. DENIAL of the application
based upon the perceived negative impact upon the surrounding area, as well as lack of conformance




MINUTIE RIECORID

Bellevue Planning Commission Meeting, October 22, 2020, Page 4

to the Comprehensive Plan. Upon roll call, Casey, Perrin, Ritz, Ackley, Hankins, Cutsforth, and
Jacobson voted yes, Aerni voted no. MOTION carried.

This item will proceed to CITY COUNCIL for PUBLIC HEARING ON December 1, 2020.

There was discussion regarding the election of officers.

MOTION was made by Ackley, seconded by Hankins, to NOMINATE Eric Ritz to serve as Planning
Commission Chair. Upon roll call, all present voted yes. MOTION carried unanimously.

MOTION was made by Ritz, seconded by Casey, to NOMINATE Sue Cutsforth to serve as Vice Chair.
Upon roll call, all present voted yes. MOTION carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m.

— |
c ] / ~f
L e L 2 Efe Yoy

Dianna Van Horn
Planning Secretary



CITY OF BELLEVUE 2.a.
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION REPORT # 1

CASE NUMBERS: S-2010-23 FOR HEARING OF:
REPORT #1: November 19, 2020

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

A. APPLICANT:
HRC Belle Lago, LLC
Attn: Dave Vogtman
6900 Westown Parkway
West Des Moines, IA 50266
B. PROPERTY OWNER:
Maalreo, LLC
P.O. Box 461178
Papillion, NE 68046
C. GENERAL LOCATION:
South 45" Street and Lookingglass Drive
D. LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
Lots 122 through 124, Belle Lago South, being a platting of a tract of land located in
part of the Southwest % of the Northwest % of Section 8, T13N, R13E of the 6" P.M.,
Sarpy County, Nebraska.
E. REQUESTED ACTIONS:
1. Final Plat Lots 122 through 124, Belle Lago South.
2. Approval of the First Amendment to the Belle Lago South Subdivision Agreement.

F. EXISTING ZONING AND LAND USE:

RG-50-PS, Vacant



I1.

III.

G. PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of this request is to final plat to enable single family residential
development.

H. SIZE OF SITE:
The site is approximately 1.374 acres.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

A. EXISTING CONDITION OF SITE:
The site is presently vacant and most recently used agriculturally.
B. GENERAL NEIGHBORHOOD/AREA LAND USES AND ZONING:
North: Vacant, AG
East: Vacant (Belle Lago Subdivision), RG-50-PS

South:  Single Family Residential, RS-72-PS
West: General Residential, RG-50-PS

Lol ol ol

C. REVELANT CASE HISTORY:
On September 24, 2020, the Planning Commission recommended approval of a
request to rezone Lots 122 through 124, Belle Lago South, from AG to RG-50-PS, for
the purpose of single-family residential development, and preliminary plat Lots 122
through 124, Belle Lago South.

D. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS:
1. Chapter 4, Subdivision Regulations, regarding Final Plats.

ANALYSIS

A. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan designates this area as medium
density residential.

B. OTHER PLANS:

None


















	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER:
	a. Pledge of Allegiance
	b. Roll Call
	c. The Open Meetings Act location
	d. Approve Minutes of October 22, 2020 Regular Meeting
	October 22, 2020 PC Minutes

	e. Accept into the record all staff reports, attachments, memos, and handouts regarding each application.

	2. CONSENT AGENDA/PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	a. Request to final plat Lots 122 through 124, Belle Lago South, being a platting of a tract of land located in part of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 8, T13N, R13E of the 6th P.M., Sarpy County, Nebraska; and approval of the First Amendment to the Belle Lago South Subdivision Agreement.  Applicant:  HRC Belle Lago, LLC.  General location:  45th Street and Lookingglass Drive.  Case #:  S-2010-23.

	3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	a. Request for a conditional use permit for Lot 1, Biben Subdivision, for the purpose of auto sales.  Applicant:  Edward A Gilbert Jr.  Location:  2620 Greenfield Street, #100.  Case #:  CUP-2009-03.
	b. Request to rezone Lot 1, Walbeck Addition, from RG-20 to BN for the purpose of commercial development.  Applicant:  Amigo’s Market LLC.  General location:  West Chandler Road and South 28th Street.  Case #:  Z-2009-14.
	c. Request to rezone Lot 2, Wolf Creek Replat 4, from BGH to RG-8-PS for the purpose of multi-family development.  Applicant:  Wolf Creek Apartments II, LLC.  General location:  10904 South 15th Street.  Case#:  Z-2010-15.

	4. CURRENT BUSINESS
	a. Approve the 2021 Uniform Review Schedule

	5. ADJOURNMENT
	00a4150b-b418-4c17-bb72-ee7726e8886e
	24f54c4e-a3cc-4fc8-b9a4-c387c9fc90f7
	bc5708aa-dcae-4c77-b8e1-b31d339a2973
	c306d92a-6624-4ded-88ec-ec3ababee499

